
Join us!  In an effort to enhance meetings post COVID-19 emergency 
orders, the City Council invites you to join and/or participate in a variety 
of ways:  Via computer Zoom meetings (no app is necessary), telephone, 

email and/or text!  See details on page 3. 

 
Vestavia Hills 

City Council Agenda 
February 28, 2022 

6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order              

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – Ron Higey, Vestavia Hills Chaplain 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance  

5. Approval Of The Agenda 

6. Announcements, Candidates and Guest Recognition 

7. City Manager’s Report 

8. Councilors’ Reports 

9. Financial Reports – Zachary Clifton, Deputy Finance Director 

10. Approval Of Minutes – February 14, 2022 (Regular Meeting)  

Old Business 

11. Ordinance Number 3085 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute And Deliver A Second Amendment To The Annexation Agreement With Liberty 

Park Joint Venture   (public hearing delayed to March 14, 2022) 

12. Ordinance Number 3086 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute And Deliver A Development Agreement With Liberty Park Joint Venture LLP 

For Economic Development In Liberty Park   (public hearing delayed to March 14, 2022) 

New Business 

13. Resolution Number 5375 – A Resolution Designating The Mayor As The City’s Voting 

Delegate At The 2022 League Of Municipalities Annual Convention 

14. Resolution Number 5376 – A Resolution Amending Resolution 4294 To Update The Board 

Of Education Selection Process 

 



New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

First Reading (No Action To Be Taken At This Meeting) 

15. Citizens Comments   

16. Time Of Adjournment 

  



SPECIAL NOTICE CONCERNING CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 
Due to the COVID-19 safety advice given by the ADPH, the City Council work sessions and 
meetings are available via video-conference and teleconference. If you choose not to attend 
in person, you may still participate. Following are instructions for three options to 
participate remotely. 
 
COMPUTER PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 
 
To participate in by videoconference, click https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5539517181. When the 
Zoom.us window opens in your browser, click “Allow” so that the page may open to a waiting 
room. The host will open the meeting and bring all into the meeting room at that time.  All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak 
during time(s) identified for public input, activate the “Raise Hand” feature and unmute yourself 
by toggling the mute button. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives you the floor, state your 
name and address for the record and then you may address the Council. 
 
Using the icons on the Zoom screen, you can:  

 Mute/unmute your microphone (far left)  
 Turn on/off camera (“Start/Stop Video”)  
 View Participants – opens a pop-out screen that includes the “Raise Hand” icon that you 

may use to raise a virtual hand  
 Change your screen name displayed in the participant list and video window  
 Toggle between “speaker” and “gallery” views – “Speaker view” shows the active 

speaker; “Gallery view” tiles all of the meeting participants 
 
TELEPHONE PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 
 
To participate by telephone, dial 312.626.6799 and enter the meeting ID: 455 534 3275. All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak during 
time(s) identified for public input, press *6 on your phone keypad to unmute yourself. Then state 
your name and wait for the Mayor to recognize you. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives 
you the floor, state your name and address for the record and then address the Council. 
 
 
TEXT AND/OR EMAIL (prior to the meeting or in real time) 
 
If you do not wish to join the meeting but would like to ask a question or make a statement 
regarding an item on the agenda, you may email the City Council directly at 
City.Council@vhal.org. You may also text your question/statement to City Council at 
205.517.1370. Both of these options are available prior to and during each work session and 
meeting. Be sure to provide your name and address for the record and your comments will be 
recited to the City Council as the corresponding item is being addressed. Note: As a matter of 
record, your name and address are required. If identification is not provided, your 
comment/question will not be presented. 



City Council Minutes 
February 14, 2022 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

FEBRUARY 14, 2022 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  A number of staff and members of 
the general public also attended virtually, via Zoom.com, following publication pursuant to 
Alabama law.  The Mayor called the meeting to order.  The City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mayor Ashley C. Curry 
      Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
      Paul Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 

Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
Danny Rary, Police Chief 

 Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
 Zach Clifton, Accountant 
 Brian Davis, Public Services Director 

Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Keith Blanton, Building Safety Director* 

      Umang Patel, Court Director* 
       *present virtually via Zoom or telephone 
 

Steve Dedmon, a Vestavia Hills Chaplain, led the invocation which was followed by the 
Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a motion of approval of the agenda as presented. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve the agenda as presented was by Mr. Pierce seconded by Mr. 

Weaver.  Roll call vote was, as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  

Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
February 14, 2022 

Page 2 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, CANDIDATES, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Mrs. Cook announced that she will be hosting a “Coffee and Conversation” on Friday, 
beginning at 8 AM, at O’Henry’s at Patchwork Farms.  She stated that she will be happy 
to speak with citizens on any issue if they wish to attend.  She also asked that anyone who 
plans to attend should contact her ahead of time to ensure she can provide seating for 
everyone. 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed Ben Chambliss and Mark Macoy, Chamber of Commerce Board 
members present representing the Chamber. 

 Mr. Head announced that the Parks and Recreation Board will meet in work session 
beginning tomorrow at 5:30 PM in the Executive Conference Room.  He stated that a 
regular meeting will follow at 6 PM, if needed. 

 Greg Cook, candidate for Alabama Supreme Court, introduced himself. He stated he 
would like to succeed the current Vestavia Hills resident who occupies this seat, Justice 
Mike Bolin.  He stated he strongly believes in public service and asked for support in the 
upcoming May 24 Republican primary election.   

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor presented a Proclamation designating February 21-27, 2022 as “Arbor Week.”  
Mr. Downes read the Proclamation and the Mayor presented it to Mary Claire Smith, Jefferson 
County Forester and member of the Alabama Forestry Commission; and Brian Davis, Public 
Services Director. 
 
 Ms. Smith thanked the Council for the recognition and participation in Arbor Week.  She 
presented the Mayor with a new Arbor Day flag and signage that shows the City has participated 
in Arbor Week for 28 years. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes reminded everyone that the annual strategic planning work session will be 
held on Feb 21 and 22 and will begin with a short half-hour executive session.  He asked 
everyone to be prepared for a tour of the civic center which will require closed-toe shoes.  
The meeting will conclude on Tuesday, after lunch, and will be available via Zoom. 

 Mr. Downes stated that he received many complaints today on the Crosshaven Drive 
project because there were some shutdowns due to both contractor and County crews 
trying to do work at the same time to complete the project quickly.  He asked people to 
please be patient as the project is progressing and they will try to make it as painless as 
possible through policing, scheduling, and signage.  A full briefing on the project will 
occur during the strategic work session. 

 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
February 14, 2022 

Page 3 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mrs. Cook stated she has been busy responding to many citizens following the public 
engagement meetings on Liberty Park and looks forward to more conversation next week 
at her Coffee and Conversation. 

 Mr. Weaver stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission met in regular session last 
Thursday with a preliminary plat for some road infrastructure in Liberty Park.  He stated 
that one other plan was approved at that meeting. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The Mayor stated that the approval of the January 24, 2022 (Work Session) And January 
24, 2022 (Regular Meeting) was needed and opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve the minutes of the regular meeting of the December 24, 2021 

(Work Session) And December 24, 2021 (Regular Meeting) was made by Mrs. 
Cook and second was by Mr. Weaver.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  

Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5374 
 

Resolution Number 5374 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute All 
Actions Necessary To Install Resurfacing At The Meadowlawn Park 
Playground   

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5374 was by Mr. Weaver and seconded by 

Mr. Pierce. 
 
Mr. Downes stated that this is an effort to improve the playground at Meadowlawn Park. 

The park was originally built to be a flood mitigation solution as well as a greenspace area in this 
location.  This allows a new surface which will provide more structure so that no damage would 
occur on the playground when the flooding occurs.  The funding was brought forward by State 
Senator Dan Roberts, who contributed $64,000 to fund most of this project. 

 
Discussion ensued about the time required to install the surface. Installation start time will 

depend on when the crew is available. Councilor Pierce asked whether this type surface needs to 
be considered for Byrd Park. 

 



City Council Minutes 
February 14, 2022 

Page 4 
 

Mrs. Cook expressed gratitude for the generosity of the funding from State Sen. Roberts 
and mentioned that he is running, opposed, for re-election in the Republican primary on May 24. 
She said that State Sen. Roberts does a great job representing her district. 

 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 

Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote was as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  

Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3081 
 

Ordinance Number 3081 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Settlement Of Four Tax Appeals 
(Being Jefferson County Circuit Court Case Numbers 01-Cv-2021-000125, 
01-Cv-2021-000126, 01-Cv-2021-000127 And 01 Cv-2021-000128) Seeking 
Refunds Of The Overpayment Of Business License Taxes Erroneously Paid 
By Four Insurance Companies In 2017 And 2018; And Authorizing And 
Directing The Mayor And City Manager To Execute And Deliver The 
Settlement Agreement And Any And All Documents And Other Actions 
Necessary To Effectuate Said Settlement Agreement   

 
The Mayor explained that this is for overpayment of licenses by insurance companies. 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 3079 was by Mr. Weaver and seconded by 

Mr. Pierce. 
 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, stated that this claim appears to go back over the course 

of several years and that the insurance companies had to go to court to get the refund.  If they paid 
erroneously, why did the City deny these refunds in the first place when they originally appealed? 

 
Mr. Downes stated that there were legal issues concerning the statute of limitations and 

the way the companies applied for the refund.  This settlement was agreed upon by all parties 
involved in the dispute. 

 
There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called 

for the question.  Roll call vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – abstain   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  

Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
February 14, 2022 

Page 5 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3084 
 

Ordinance Number 3084 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With Alabama Department Of 
Transportation For Access To A Computerized Motorist Information System 
To Monitor Traffic Conditions On Certain Portions Of The State 
Transportation System 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 3084 was by Mr. Weaver and seconded by 

Mr. Pierce. 
 
Mr. Downes explained that this is a standard ALDOT agreement to allow the VHPD to 

tap into ALDOT’s camera system. 
 
There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll call 

vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  

Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  

 Ordinance Number 3085 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver A Second Amendment To The Annexation Agreement With Liberty 
Park Joint Venture   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3086 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver A Development Agreement With Liberty Park Joint Venture LLP For 
Economic Development In Liberty Park   (public hearing) 

 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 Donald Harwell, 1357 Willoughby Road, stated that, around 5 PM yesterday, that he was 
traveling 31 south and observed an officer with someone stopped.  He stated that, when he passed 
the vehicles, he noticed that the officer was putting gasoline into the person’s vehicle.  He stated 
that he thought that was an awesome example of the way VHPD goes above and beyond to serve 
the public.  He commended VHPD on their efforts to serve the residents of this City. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
February 14, 2022 

Page 6 
 

 
 At 6:25 PM, Mrs. Cook made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:26 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3085 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3085 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE 
ANNEXATION AGREEMENT WITH LIBERTY PARK JOINT VENTURE 

WHEREAS, on September 30, 1992, a certain Annexation Agreement (the “Original 

Annexation Agreement”) was executed among Liberty Park Joint Venture (“LPJV”), Torchmark 

Development Corporation, An Alabama corporation (“TDC”) and the City of Vestavia Hills 

regarding the annexation(s) of acreage developed as the Liberty Park Planned Unit Development 

(“Liberty Park PUD”); and 

WHEREAS, on October 29, 1996, a Supplemental Annexation Agreement was executed 

in connection with an additional 798 +/- acres; and 

WHEREAS, on February 2, 1998, an Agreement was executed among LPJV, TDC, 

Drummond Company Inc., (“Drummond”) and the City of Vestavia Hills Board of Education (the 

“Board”) which set forth certain terms and conditions for a payout by the LPJV pursuant to Section 

6 of the Original Annexation Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, a certain Supplemental and Amendatory Agreement dated March 6, 1998 

among the City, LBJV, TDC, Drummond and the Board in which the parties desired to amend 

certain provisions of the Original Annexation Agreement relating to public school improvements 

(See Section 1(c), of the Supplemental and Amendatory Agreement dated March 6, 1998) and the 

Amendatory Agreement fully and completely superseded the provisions of Section 6 of the 

Original Annexation Agreement (but no others); and 

WHEREAS, LPJV believes the best use of the remaining undeveloped land of Liberty 

Park located within the most recent 798 +/- annexation is a mixed use development including retail, 

commercial, office, hospitality and residential dwelling units with a traditional neighborhood town 

center to be known as “The Bray at Liberty Park” on approximately 50 +/- acres of the property 

currently zoned PUD PB (planned business) for proposed uses such as retail, mixed-use residential, 

office and medical/medical office in lieu of a regional mall which was proposed in the earlier 

Annexation Agreements; and 

WHEREAS, LPJV is requesting amendments to the Annexation agreements previously 

described; and 



Ordinance Number 3085 
Page 2 

WHEREAS, LPJV has submitted an “Amendment to Annexation Agreements for Liberty 

Park” (the “Amended Agreement”), a copy of which is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and 

incorporated into this Ordinance Number 3085 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept this 

Amended Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Amendment 

to Annexation Agreements for Liberty Park; and

2. Said agreement shall be signed by the Mayor and City Manager and the City Clerk shall 

attest said agreement; and

3. A copy of the Amended Agreement shall be submitted to the City Clerk’s office for official 

record; and

4. This Ordinance Number 3085 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

publication/posting as required by Alabama law.

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of March, 2022.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3085 
Page 3 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama hereby certify that the 
foregoing Ordinance No. 3085 constitutes a true, correct and complete copy of said 
Ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on the 14th, day 
of March 2022, pertaining to the matters set out therein, as same appear in the records of the 
City. 

Under my signature as City Clerk and under seal of the City of Vestavia Hills, this ___ day of 
__________________, 2022.  

[SEAL]  __________________________________ 
City Clerk 



Draft Copy

1 
45456204 v5

AMENDMENT TO ANNEXATION AGREEMENTS FOR LIBERTY PARK 

THIS AMENDMENT TO ANNEXATION AGREEMENTS FOR LIBERTY PARK 

(this “Amendment”) is made and entered into on this _____ day of _______________, 2021, 

between and among the CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, an Alabama municipal 

corporation (the “City”), and LIBERTY PARK JOINT VENTURE, LLP, an Alabama limited 

liability partnership (successor to Liberty Park Joint Venture, an Alabama general partnership) 

(“LPJV”). 

RECITALS 

A. LPJV is the developer of an approximately 3,500 acre master-planned community 

known as Liberty Park, which is located within the City limits (the “Development”).  The 

Development is subject to the following agreements (collectively, the “Annexation 

Agreements”): 

1. That certain Annexation Agreement (the “Original Annexation 

Agreement”) dated September 20, 1992 among LPJV, Torchmark Development

Corporation, an Alabama corporation (“TDC”), and the City in connection with the

annexation of approximately 2,500 acres into the municipal City limits.  Among other 

things, the Original Annexation Agreement set forth certain agreements of LPJV and TDC 

to dedicate up to thirty-five (35) acres located within the Development to the City for 

municipal facilities and schools. In addition, the Original Annexation Agreement required 

LPJV, under certain conditions, to pay to the City the sum of up to Fifteen Million and 

No/100 Dollars ($15,000,000.00) as required by the City to accommodate the increased 

student population generated by the addition of the Development to the Vestavia Hills

School System, all as set forth in Section 6 of the Original Annexation Agreement. 

2. That certain Supplemental Annexation Agreement dated October 29, 1996

among LPJV, TDC, and the City in connection with the annexation of an additional 

approximately 798 acres into the municipal City limits. 

3. That certain Agreement dated February 2, 1998 among LPJV, TDC,

Drummond Company, Inc. (“Drummond”) and the City of Vestavia Hills Board of 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3085



Draft Copy

45456204 v5 2 

Education (the “Board”) which set forth certain terms and conditions for the partial 

payment of the Fifteen Million and No/100 Dollars ($15,000,000.00) owed by LPJV 

pursuant to Section 6 of the Original Annexation Agreement. 

4. That certain Supplemental and Amendatory Agreement dated March 6, 

1998 among the City, LPJV, TDC, Drummond, and the Board in which the parties desired 

to amend certain provisions of the Original Annexation Agreement relating to public 

school improvements “and – as the public schools are constructed and operated by the 

Board – to include the Board as party to this Agreement regarding public schools to serve 

the Development.”  (See Section 1(c), of the Supplemental and Amendatory Agreement 

dated March 6, 1998).  The provisions of the March 6, 1998 Supplemental and Amendatory 

Agreement fully and completely superseded the provisions of Section 6 of the Original 

Annexation Agreement (but no others).   

5. That certain Agreement dated August 20, 1998 among the City, LPJV, 

TDC, Drummond and the Board in connection with the issuance of additional warrants by 

the City for the New School Facilities (as defined in said Agreement) and LPJV’s payment 

obligations in regards to such warrants.  In such Agreement, the City, LPJV, TDC, and the 

Board each ratified and confirmed each of the prior Annexation Agreements, with the 

caveat that “it being understood that since the School Board is not a party to the [Original] 

Annexation Agreement, it is not appropriate for it to ratify and confirm that instrument.” 

(See Section 5, August 20, 1998 Agreement). 

B. All of the obligations of LPJV set forth in the Annexation Agreements with respect 

to the dedication of land to the City for municipal and school purposes have been duly completed.  

Furthermore, all of the obligations of LPJV set forth in the Annexation Agreements to pay the sum 

of Fifteen Million Dollars ($15,000,000) to the City have been satisfied.    

C. All obligations contained in the Annexation Agreements relating to matters 

involving the Board (namely, matters relating to school construction and improvements 

necessitated by the addition of the Development to the Vestavia Hills School System) have been 

completed. This Amendment is not related to matters within the legislative powers and authority 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3085



Draft Copy

45456204 v5 3 

of the Board, but instead to matters solely within the legislative power and authority of the City.  

Therefore, the Board (with its consent and concurrence) is not a party to this Amendment. 

D. The Annexation Agreements currently specify a maximum density of 2,336 single 

family units (the “Single Family Density Allowance”) and a maximum density of 890 units for 

multi-family units (the “Multi-Family Density Allowance”), for a total residential density of 

3,226 units (the “Residential Density Allowance”).  The Annexation Agreements further provide 

that the total number of Multi-Family Rental Units (as hereinafter defined) within the Multi-Family 

Density Allowance shall not exceed 300.  The Colonial Grand at Liberty Park located within the 

Development is a 300-unit luxury rental apartment community and as such, the number of Multi-

Family Rental Units is currently allocated in full.  

E. Approximately 300 acres within the Development (the “PB Land”) was zoned 

Planned Business (PB) on or around 1996 in connection with a possible development of a regional 

shopping center within the Development; however, due to the development of The Summit at the 

Highway 280/I-459 interchange and other retail shopping centers in close proximity of the 

Development, the development of a regional shopping center is no longer viable, thus leaving the 

Development with an overabundance of commercially zoned land.   In addition, Enviro Services, 

LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of LPJV, no longer requires approximately 130 acres (commonly 

called the “Spray Fields”) for its purposes and such land is now available for additional residential 

development.  In addition to the PB Land and the Spray Fields, there are approximately 435 acres 

of land zoned for residential use located south of Liberty Parkway (collectively with the PB Land 

and the Spray Fields, the “Remaining Undeveloped Land”). 

F. LPJV believes the best use of the Remaining Undeveloped Land is mixed-use 

development including retail, commercial, office, hospitality, and Residential Dwelling Units (as 

hereinafter defined).   LPJV intends to develop a traditional neighborhood town center to be known 

as “The Bray at Liberty Park” on approximately 50 acres of the PB Land for proposed uses such 

as retail, hotel, mixed-use residential, office, and medical/medical office (the “Town Center”). 

G. Based on the foregoing, LPJV is requesting amendments to the Annexation 

Agreements.NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and other good and valuable 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3085



Draft Copy

45456204 v5 4 

consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as 

follows: 

1. Defined Terms.  In addition to terms previously defined herein, the following 

terms shall have the following meanings: 

 “Age-Restricted Rental Units” means Multi-Family Rental Units available for 

rent to individuals 55 years or older in compliance with the Housing for Older Persons Act 

of 1995. 

 “Market-Rate Rental Units” means Multi-Family Rental Units available for rent 

to the general public under The Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. 3601 et. seq. 

“Multi-Family Rental Units” means all multifamily units (including Senior 

Housing Rental Units) which are offered for rent.  Multi-Family Rental Units shall not 

include individual units held for rent by an individual owner. 

“Residential Dwelling Units” means all Single-Family Units and Multi-Family 

Rental Units. 

“Restricted Rental Units” means Age-Restricted Rental Units and Senior 

Housing Rental Units. 

“Senior Housing Rental Units” means rental units within a senior housing 

community which provide services marketed towards seniors or the elderly in a congregate 

setting such as independent living, assisted living, memory care, or skilled nursing care.    

“Single Family Units” means residential dwellings for single family use. 

2. Amendments.  The Annexation Agreements are hereby modified and amended as 

follows: 

(a) The Residential Density Allowance is hereby increased by 644 to a total of 3,870 

Residential Dwelling Units. 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3085



Draft Copy

45456204 v5 5 

(b) The Multi-Family Density Allowance shall be decreased to 870, to consist solely 

of Multi-Family Rental Units.   Additional Market-Rate Rental Units will not exceed 270 units 

with no more than 10% of the total units to contain 3 bedrooms.   

(c) It is agreed and understood that the additional Market Rate Rental Units allowed 

by this Amendment are to be located within the Town Center. 

3. Applicable Laws.   This Amendment is governed by the laws of the State of 

Alabama. 

4. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 

of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original, and such counterparts shall together 

constitute but one and the same instrument. 

5. Successors and Assigns.  This Amendment shall be binding upon, and inure to the 

benefit of, the parties hereto and their respective successors and/or assigns. 

6. Ratification.  Except as herein specifically modified, the Annexation Agreements 

are hereby ratified and affirmed and remain in full force and effect.  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto caused this Amendment to be 

executed as of the day first above written. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY] 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 

  

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3085



Draft Copy

45456204 v5 6 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, 
an Alabama municipal corporation 

 

By:       
Print Name:      
Title:       
 

SEAL 

Attest:       
 City Clerk 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) 

 

 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County in said State, hereby 

certify that ___________________________, whose name as _____________ of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation under the laws of Alabama, is signed to the 

foregoing instrument, who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being 

informed of the contents of such instrument, he, as such officer and with full authority, executed 

the same voluntarily for and as the act of said municipal corporation. 

 

 Given under my hand and official seal this the _____ day of _______________, 2021. 

 

             
      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires:    
 

[SEE NEXT PAGE FOR ADDITIONAL EXECUTION] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3085



Draft Copy

45456204 v5 7 

LIBERTY PARK JOINT VENTURE, LLP, 
an Alabama limited liability partnership 
(successor to Liberty Park Joint Venture, an Alabama 
general partnership) 
 
By:       
Print Name:      
Title:       
 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) 

 

 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County in said State, hereby 

certify that ___________________________, whose name as ___________________ of  Liberty 

Park Joint Venture, LLP, an Alabama limited liability partnership (successor to Liberty Park Joint 

Venture, an Alabama general partnership), is signed to the foregoing instrument, who is known to 

me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of such instrument, 

he, as such officer and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said 

limited liability partnership. 

 

 Given under my hand and official seal this the _____ day of _______________, 2021. 

 
             
      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires:    
 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3085



Draft Copy

 8 
45456204 v5 

     
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3085



Ordinance Number 3086 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3086 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH 
LIBERTY PARK JOINT VENTURE LLP FOR ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT IN LIBERTY PARK 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a Development 

Agreement for Liberty Park; and

2. A copy of said Development Agreement is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and 

incorporated into this Ordinance Number 3086 as if written fully therein; and

3. Said agreement shall be signed by the Mayor and City Manager and the City Clerk shall 

attest said agreement; and

4. A copy of the Development Agreement shall be submitted to the City Clerk’s office for 

official record; and

5. This Ordinance Number 3086 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

publication/posting as required by Alabama law.

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of March, 2022.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3086 
Page 2 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama hereby certify that the 
foregoing Ordinance No. 3086 constitutes a true, correct and complete copy of said 
Ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on the 14th, day 
of March, 2022, pertaining to the matters set out therein, as same appear in the records of the 
City. 

Under my signature as City Clerk and under seal of the City of Vestavia Hills, this ___ day of 
__________________, 2022.  

[SEAL]  __________________________________ 
City Clerk 



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



Draft Copy

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3086



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5375 
 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING THE MAYOR AS THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS’ VOTING DELEGATE FOR THE ANNUAL BUSINESS 
MEETING TO BE HELD AT THE 2022 ANNUAL COVENTION OF THE 
LEAGUE OF MUNICIPALITIES IN TUSCALOOSA, ALABAMA 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor is hereby designated to act as the City of Vestavia Hills’ voting delegate for the 

business meeting of the 2022 League of Municipalities Convention to be held in 

Tuscaloosa, Alabama; and 

2. The Mayor is hereby authorized to complete and submit the authorizing form for said 

business meeting, a copy of which is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated 

into this Resolution Number 5375; and 

3. This Resolution Number 5375 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of February, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5375



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5375



Resolution Number 5376 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5376 
 

A RESOLUTION RESCINDING RESOLUTION NUMBER 4294 
AND TO ESTABLISH THE PROCESS FOR SELECTING 
MEMBERS OF THE VESTAVIA HILLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
 WHEREAS, on February 27, 2017, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

adopted and approved Resolution Number 4294 to detail the process for selecting and 

appointing a member of the Vestavia Hills Board of Education; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council agree because of changing technology 

and a conversion to a Council/Manager form of government, it would be in the best public 

interest to amend the current selection process in keeping with Section 16-11-3 of the Code 

of Alabama, 1975.  

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That Resolution Number 4294 is hereby rescinded; and 

2. The Vestavia Hills Board of Education Selection Process is hereby adopted as 

follows: 

a. From this day forward, the public announcement of the upcoming vacancy 

shall be announced at the first regularly scheduled meeting of March; and 

b. Public announcement of the new member of the Vestavia Hills Board of 

Education be given at the last regularly scheduled City Council meeting of 

April; and 

3. That the new selection process be revised and a copy attached to this Resolution 

Number 5376; and 

4. This resolution shall become effective upon approval and adoption of the 

Vestavia Hills City Council. 

 

APPROVED and ADOPTED, this the 28th day of February, 2022. 

 
 
 
 

Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 5376 
Page 2 

 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Resolution Number 5376 
Page 3 

 
VESTAVIA HILLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 

SELECTION PROCESS 
 
INTRODUCTION. 
 
 In 1970, the City of Vestavia Hills formed its own school system.  Since that time, 

our system has developed a stellar reputation for academic excellence, which has been an 

important stimulus to our City’s growth and prosperity.  To promote the appointment of 

school board members who will protect and maintain excellence in academic achievement 

in our city schools, the City will adhere to the following school board selection and 

appointment process:   

a. the City Council will announce the upcoming Board vacancy at the first 

City Council meeting in March; and 

b. the City Council will invite candidates to submit an application and a 

résumé to the City Council; and 

c. the City Council will interview applicants, in conformance with Open 

Meetings Act of the State of Alabama; and 

d. the City Council will discuss, in conformance with the Open Meetings 

Act of the State of Alabama, the merits of the nominees for the Board 

of Education;  

e. the City Council will vote on and announce the appointment at the last 

regular City Council meeting in April. 

 

 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF BOARD VACANCY. 
 
 The Code of Alabama, 1975, in §16-11-3, requires the City Council to appoint 

members of the Board of Education for full or unexpired terms.  A full term begins in the 

month of June and is for five (5) years.  The terms of the Board are staggered with one 

vacancy occurring each year. 

 The Council School Board liaison will announce during the first Council meeting 

in March of each year that an appointment for a full term will be made during the last 

Council meeting in April.  Interested candidates may apply no later than 5:00 p.m. on the 

day of the first regular Council meeting in April. 



Resolution Number 5376 
Page 4 

 
 In cases of unexpired terms, the Council School Board liaison will make the 

announcement as soon as possible after the Council receives notice of the ensuing vacancy.  

The announcement will include the dates during which applicants may apply. 

 Immediately after the announcement is made by the Council School Board liaison, 

the City Clerk of Vestavia Hills will post notice on the City’s website and all other social 

media accounts of the City. A copy of the notice will be emailed to the Superintendent of 

the Board of Education to be distributed to the individual schools and parent/teacher 

organizations.  Such announcement will state the following information: 

 1. when the vacancy will occur;  

 2. the dates during which applicants may apply;  

 3. where and to whom applicants must submit their application;  

 4. when the appointment will be made. 

 
 
APPLICATION FOR BOARD APPOINTMENT 
 
 Applicants must reside in the City and submit a completed application (Exhibit A) 

to the City Clerk by the announced deadline date. 

The City will provide applicants a copy of this selection procedure, along with any 

other helpful information, as approved by the Council School Board liaison.  The City will 

post the application and all relevant information on the City website at the time of posting 

the opening announcement.   

The following are the state requirements (§16-11-2(c), Code of Alabama, 1975) for 

Board of Education members:   

“(c) No Person shall be eligible for election or appointment as a member of a 

city board of education unless he or she satisfies all of the following qualifications: 

1) Is a person of good moral character. 

2) Has obtained a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

3) Is not employed by that city board of education. 

4) Is not serving on the governing board of a private elementary or 

secondary educational institution. 

5) Is not on the National Sex Offender Registry or the State Sex Offender 

Registry. 

6) Has not been convicted of a felony. 

 



Resolution Number 5376 
Page 5 

 
 
INTERVIEW OF APPLICANTS 
 
 Each candidate will be assigned an interview time at a time and date that is 

convenient for the Council. Interviews will be open, public meetings under the Open 

Meetings Act. 

The following are additional desirable traits for effective board members, which 

the City Council will seek when interviewing candidates: 

 1. Commitment to Public Education – Demonstrates a commitment in 

public education and our City through community service. 

 2. Dedication to Service – Devotes necessary time and energy to Board 

matters and is active in Board meetings and functions, including 

periodic visits to schools and correspondence with stakeholders. 

 3. Team-Oriented – Works collaboratively with other Board members to 

achieve common goals of the School System. 

 4. Integrity – Conducts business and personal affairs with the utmost 

integrity. 

 5. Open-Minded – Considers the opinions and constructive input of others, 

including Board members, school administrators, city officials and the 

public. 

 6. Judgment and Understanding – Understands issues facing the school 

system and exercises sound judgment to make informed decisions in all 

Board matters; asks questions to promote clarity in decision-making. 

 7. Independence – Makes decisions that promote common goals of the 

school system, operating independently of outside pressures or 

influence of special interest groups. 

 8. Communication Skills – Communicates effectively, both in writing and 

orally, and maintains the dignity of the office of School Board Member 

in all public communications. 

  



Resolution Number 5376 
Page 6 

 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF SELECTION. 
 
 The appointment of the Board members for full terms will be made at the last City 

Council meeting in April.  Appointments to unexpired terms will be made at a designated 

time. 

 Immediately after the appointment is made the Council School Board liaison will 

issue a press release to announce the applicant.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Resolution Number 5376 
Page 7 

 

VESTAVIA HILLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SELECTION PROCESS 

 

 
Council Announces Vacancy 

City Clerk Posts Notice of Vacancy and Application Materials 
 
 

 
 

 
Candidates Submit Applications to City Clerk 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Council Interviews Applicants 

 
 

 
 

 
Council Discusses Candidates in an Open Meeting 

 
 

 
 

 
Council Votes on Appointment 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  



Resolution Number 5376 
Page 8 

 
Exhibit A 

 
APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO THE VESTAVIA HILLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
 

Full Name: ____________________________________________________________ 

   (first)    (middle)    (last) 

 

Address:  

 

Home Phone     Cell or Business Phone:  

 

Employer:     Position:  

 

Is your employer aware and supportive of your application? 

 

Education: 

 High School:    Graduation Year:  

 Undergraduate:   Degree:       Area of Study 

 Graduate School:   Degree:       Area of Study 

 

Academic Honors (including academic societies)  

 

References: 

 

Name:    Address     Phone 

 

Name:    Address     Phone 

 

Name:    Address     Phone 

 

List schools and either current grade or graduation date of your children who attend(ed) 

Vestavia Hills public schools: 

Name:    School(s)  Grade/Grad Date: 

Name    School(s)  Grade/Grad Date 

Name:    School(s)  Grade/Grad Date: 

Name    School(s)  Grade/Grad Date 



Resolution Number 5376 
Page 9 

 
What educational, professional, or civic experiences have you had that would contribute to 

your performance as a member of the Board? 

 

 

 

Describe your experience and involvement with the Vestavia Hills public school system: 

 

 

 

Why would you like to serve on the Board? 

 

 

 

Describe any areas you feel may constitute a potential conflict of interest should you be 

chosen to serve on the Board. 

 

 

 

My signature below attests the information I have provided on this application is true and 

correct to the best of my knowledge and that I meet the following minimum qualifications 

as required by §16-11-2(c) of the Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 

____________________________________  _________________ 

 (Signature)       Date 

 

(For use by the City Clerk) 

 

Date/Application Received:    Date of Interview: 

 


	2022_0228CC_A
	Minutes
	Ordinance 3085
	Ordinance 3086
	Resolution 5375
	Resolution 5376



